
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
City of Arroyo Grande, City Council Chambers 

215 East Branch Street 
Arroyo Grande, California 93420 

   
Wednesday, April 06, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
John Shoals, Chair                   City of Grover Beach 
Mary Lucey, Director                  Oceano Community Services District 
Jim Hill, Director                   City of Arroyo Grande 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Matthew Guerrero, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
Tim Brown, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Barbara Nicolls, Director           City of Grover Beach 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present 
comments, thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  Comments 
should be limited to those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the District.  The 
Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on matters not published on the 
agenda.  In response to your comments, the Chair or presiding Board Member may: 

• Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 
• Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting 

agenda. 
Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 

• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not 

directed to individual Board members. 
• Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, Staff 

or member of the audience shall not be permitted. 
 



 

Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is 
distributed to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for 
public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing 
or document will be available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a 
member agency located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Government Code §54954.2, 
requests for disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, may be made by a person with a disability who requires modification or 
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by 
contacting the District Manager or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  So that the 
District may address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two 
business days in advance of the meeting. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group.  
Each item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of the public 
who wishes to comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time.  Any 
Board Member may request that any item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to 
permit discussion or to change the recommended course of action.  The Board may 
approve the remainder of the Consent Agenda on one motion. 
 
4A.   Review and Approval of Minutes of Meeting of March 16, 2016 
4B.   Review and Approval of Warrants   
4C. Ratification of District Administrator’s Contract 

 
5. PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
6. BOARD ACTION ON INDIVIDUAL ITEMS: 
    
 6A. Tax Role 
  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider postponing the District’s  
  (SLO) Tax Roll. Staff recommends postponing the placement of wastewater  
  treatment fees for the customers of the Cities of Arroyo Grande (AG) and Grover  
  Beach (GB) on the SLO County tax roll for fiscal year 2016-17. 
 
 6B.   Election of Vice President 
  Staff recommends that the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District  
  (SSLOCSD) Board of Directors elects a Vice-Chair for the 2016 Calendar Year. 
 
 6C.   February 2016 Legal Bills 
  Staff recommends that the Board discuss the legal bills of Gilbert Trujillo and  
  Wendy Stockton that were pulled from the Warrant Register at the meeting of  
  March 16, 2016. 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 



 

 
 7A. Miscellaneous Oral Communications 
 7B. Miscellaneous Written Communications 
 
8. VERBAL REPORT BY INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 This item gives the District Administrator the opportunity to present future agenda items. 
 
9.   PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
[Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9]; (two cases). 

 
(1) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. Special District Risk 

Management Authority, Case No.: CV130473 
(2) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. State Water Resources Control 

Board (Superior Court of Sacramento) case number 34-2012-80001209-CU-WM-
GDS) 

 
11.  RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
12. ADJORNMENT 
 
 



 Minutes of the 03-16-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
 

City of Arroyo Grande, City Council Chambers 
215 East Branch Street 

Arroyo Grande, California 93420 
  

Minutes of the Meeting of Wednesday March 16, 2016 
6 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present:  Chairman John Shoals, City of Grover Beach; Director Mary Lucey, Oceano 
Community Services District; Director Jim Hill, City of Arroyo Grande 

 
District Staff in Attendance: John Clemons, Interim District Administrator/Plant 

Superintendent; Gilbert Trujillo, District Legal Counsel; 
 

2. FLAG SALUTE 
  
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 

 
There being no public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period.  

  
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

4A.   Review and Approval of Minutes of Meeting of February 17, 2016 
4C.  Financial Review at February 29, 2016 
 
Director Hill pulled Item 4B. Review and Approval of Warrant Register from the Consent 
Agenda to have a discussion on the legal bills. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker commented on the Kennedy Jenks warrant. 
Tim Brown and Patty Welsh gave comment on the legal warrants. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period. 
 
 Motion:  Director Hill made a motion to approve Items 4A and 4C. 
 Second:  Director Lucey 
 Action:   Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
4B.   Review and Approval of Warrants   
 
Director Hill asked to withhold the warrants to Gilbert Trujillo and Wendy Stockton so he 
could look more closely at them. 
 
John Clemons mentioned that 60% of items on the legal bills were onetime extraordinary  

 
 



 Minutes of the 03-16-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 
costs consisting of the Knudson Review, the Prop 218 Process and establishing a 
template for contracts going further. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker, April McLaughlin and Patty Welsh gave public comment on the warrants. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period. 
 
Director Lucey announced she is the primary Director and will be sitting at the dais. 
 
 Motion:  Director Hill made a motion to pull the Trujillo and Stockton warrants 
 for consideration and approve the rest of the warrants as presented. 
 Second:  Director Lucey 
 Action:  Motion approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
There was an additional motion to direct staff to assure that payroll since last time pay 
roll appeared on the Warrant Register be placed on next Warrant Register and any current 
payment to date. 
 
 Motion:  Director Hill 
 Second: Director Lucey 
 Action:  Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
Director Lucey asked that a future discussion on payroll and benefits be added to a future 
agenda. 
 

5. PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Superintendent Clemons presented the report.  He reported that the plant is in good 
standing.  He gave an update on maintenance, in progress, and training happening at the 
District.   
 

• Sewer Bridge Project- Kevin Merk & Assoc. prepared the Biological Resources 
Assessment to support CDFW Alteration Agreement application. 

• Bidding for Grit Removal Project will take place March 23rd.  Installation should 
be complete by late June early July. 

• Mechanical Barscreen- an RFP will be issued and the install should take place in 
August. 

• Redundancy Project- The application has been received and acknowledged by the 
Coastal Commission.   

• Recycled Water Study is still ongoing. 
• Possible energy conservation projects are being discussed with PG&E, 

specifically use of a CoGen. 
• Short-term emergency back-up plan in case of a FFR/Sec. clarifier failure is 

ongoing and hopefully will be done by next month.  This is solely for short term 
relief in case of emergency. 

• GIS manhole mapping.  Two bids have been submitted from MKN and Cannon. 
 

 



 Minutes of the 03-16-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 

• Billing will be sent to the residents of OCSD for the first half of the fiscal year. 
 

 Mike Nunley from MKN was available to answer questions.  He addressed concerns over 
 the Neg. Dec. submitted that was adopted and approved by the Board back in 2010.  He 
 said, the project description itself had not changed since 2005.  Flooding issues and other 
 concerns are the same as they were back then.  The Neg. Dec. was submitted as a means 
 to get the permit process started. 

 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Julie Tacker gave public comment. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period.  

  
  Action: The Board received and filed the Plant Superintendent’s report. 
  
6. BOARD ACTION ON INDIVIDUAL ITEMS: 

 
 6A.   6A. REVIEW OF BOARD BYLAWS 
  Staff recommended that the Board, by motion, approve amendments to the  
  2016 Bylaws.  This item was  brought back from the March 02, 2016 agenda. 
   
  Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
  Patty Welsh, Julie Tacker, April McLaughlin speaking for Sharon Brown, and  
  April McLaughlin all gave public comment.  
    

 Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period. 
 
 The Chairman directed staff to place on the agenda an item for discussion of an 
 Alternate sitting on the Board as Vice President.  
 
 Director Mary Lucey clarified that she will be sitting on the Board as the regular 
 Board Member, not the Alternate. 
 

  Motion:  Director Lucey made a motion to adopt the 2016 Bylaws with an  
  amendment to 1.6. The changes can be seen in red lettering.   
 
  The Chair, and in his/her absence, the Vice Chair, are authorized to attend  
  meetings of the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission, meetings of the  
  San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors, meetings between District Staff 
  and Water Board Personnel, including either Regional Quality Control Staff  
  or State Water Board Staff on behalf of the District, without compensation except 
  reimbursement for use of his/her private vehicle to attend such meetings  
  pursuant to District Policy 10.01(b). If the Chair is absent, the Vice Chair or 
  Board member may attend these meetings. 
 
  Second: Director Hill 

 
 



 Minutes of the 03-16-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 

 Action:  Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
  
 
 6B.   SELECTION OF DESIGN ENGINEERING FIRM FOR WASTEWATER  
  TREATMENT FACILITY REDUNDANCY PROJECT AND APPROVAL  
  OF CONTRACT 

Staff recommended that the Board of Directors issue a Notice of Award to 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc., and authorize the Interim District Administrator 
to execute a contract for design of the WWTF Redundancy Project.  This item was 
brought back from the February 17, 2016 agenda. 

 
 Motion:  Director Hill made the motion to approve staff recommendation to issue 
 a Notice of Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. execute the  Districts 
 agreement for Design Services and issue a notice to proceed with the Scope of 
 Work under Task 1 of the proposed contract.  Any further work to be subject to 
 authorization from the Board to proceed. 
 Second:  Chairman Shoals 
 Action: Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
  
 Chairman Shoals announced he is willing to travel to Santa Cruz to meet with the 
 Coastal Commission to discuss the Redundancy Project. 
 

 7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 
 
A. Miscellaneous Oral Communications 

  None to report. 
B. Miscellaneous Written Communications 

  Director Hill announced that there was a Tentative ruling on one of the  
  law suits the District is engaged in.  This will be taken up    
  in Closed Session.  Copies of this ruling will be made available. 
 
8. VERBAL REPORT BY INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
   
 No report. 
    
9. CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
[Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9]; (two cases). 

 
(1) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. Special District Risk 

Management Authority, Case No.: CV130473 
(2) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. State Water Resources 

Control Board (Superior Court of Sacramento) case number 34-2012-80001209-CU-
WM-GDS) 

 
 

 
 



 Minutes of the 03-16-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (pursuant to Gov. Code section 
 54957(b)(1))Title: District Administrator 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (pursuant to Gov. Code section 54957.6 
(Agency Representative: Chair Shoals) 
(Unrepresented Employee:  District Administrator) 

 
9. PULIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
 Patty Welsh, Beatrice Spencer and Julie Tacker gave public comment 
  
 Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period. 
 
11.  REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (pursuant to Gov. Code section 

 54957(b)(1))Title: District Administrator 
  The Board unanimously voted to appoint Mr. Gerhardt Hubner as District Administrator. 

 His contract will be placed on the next agenda.  
 

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. Special District Risk 
Management Authority, Case No.: CV130473 

 The Board received a status report and gave direction to staff.  The Board authorized a 
release of the Tentative Ruling which has become final. 

 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. State Water Resources Control 
Board (Superior Court of Sacramento) case number 34-2012-80001209-CU-WM-
GDS) 

 No reportable action but the Board did receive a status report and gave direction to staff. 
  
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Shoals adjourned 
the meeting at approximately 9:55p.m. 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE DRAFT AND NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A SUBSEQUENT MEETING.  

 
 







EMPLOYMENT  AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AND GERHARDT HUBNER 
FOR 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR SERVICES 
 
This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") is entered into this 24th day of March, 
2016, by and between the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, acting through the District 
Board of Directors, (hereinafter referred to as "District") and Gerhardt Hubner, (hereinafter referred to 
as the "Employee"), with reference to the following: 

WHEREAS, the District has conducted an extensive search for a District Administrator and desires 
to appoint the best qualified candidate to the position; and 

WHEREAS, the District is committed to developing and promoting an effective and professional 
Management Team, including the District Administrator; and 

WHEREAS, the District Administrator shall be an "at-will" employee and shall serve at the pleasure 
of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District appointed Gerhardt Hubner as the District Administrator on March 16, 
2016; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions of 
employment, and set working conditions of said Employee; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District to: provide inducement for Employee to remain is such 
employment; make possible full work productivity by assuring Employee's morale, health, and peace of 
mind with respect to the future security of his and his family; assist in the maintenance of the health and 
well-being of Employee; provide a just means for terminating the service of Employee at such time as  
he may be unable to discharge fully his duties or when the District desires to otherwise terminate his 
employment; act as a deterrent against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on the part of the 
Employee and against morally questionable personal financial dealings; and establish a clear and 
mutually understood system of compensating Employee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, and conditions in this Agreement, the 
District and Employee agree as follows: 

 
 

1. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT. 

A. Employee's status shall be "at-will" and shall serve at the pleasure of the District. 
Nothing in this Agreement or any other existing or future District document, not 
specifically amending this Agreement, shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the 
right of the District to terminate the employment of said Employee at any time and for 
any reason, or for no reason, subject to the provisions specified in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. 

B.  Subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Employee shall be employed in 
the position of District Administrator for a thirty-six (36) month period continuing from 
April 18, 2016 through April 30, 2019. 



C.  The term of employment may be extended at any time prior to the expiration of this 
Agreement by the mutual consent of District and the Employee. Such consent must be 
evidenced by a written Amendment to this Agreement approved by the Board and 
signed by the District and the Employee. 

 
 

2. COMMITMENTS OF THE PARTIES. 

A. Employee Commitments. 

i.  Duties, Responsibilities and Authority. 

1. District retains Employee to perform the duties of the District 
Administrator and any other duties as may be required by the Board of 
Directors which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement 
or the law. 

2. The Employee shall have those powers and perform all of the duties of the 
District Administrator as set forth in the laws of the State of California, 
District Ordinances, and District policies and procedures approved by the 
District from time to time. 

3. The Employee shall be subject to all District rules, regulations and policies 
applicable to employees and management and to any subsequently 
adopted laws, regulations and policies, which do not conflict with this 
Agreement or the law. 

4. The Employee shall, subject to the direction and control of the District 
Board of Directors, exercise administrative supervision over the District 
and its employees so that the statutory and other legal duties of the District 
are fully satisfied. 

5. The Employee shall serve the District diligently and to the best of his 
abilities in all respects and shall always act in District's best interest in 
fulfilling its legal responsibilities as a  county sanitation   district 
organized under California Health and Safety Code Section 4700 et seq.. 

6. The Employee agrees to make sufficient time available to each member of 
the District Board of Directors each week to provide an opportunity to be 
briefed on District issues. 

7. The Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employment of District 
during the term of this Agreement and shall not accept other employment 
or perform other services for compensation without having first obtained 
written permission from the Board, which the Board may withhold at its 
sole discretion. 

1i.   Hours of Work. 

1. The Employee is an FLSA exempt, at-will employee but is expected to 
engage in the hours of work that are necessary to fulfill the obligations of 
the District Administrator's position. The Employee is a full-time 
employee expected to work the normal business hours of the District and 



is expected to be available at all times unless he is on official leave and 
has designated a full-time management employee in an acting capacity as 
District Administrator. 

2. It is recognized the Employee must devote a great deal of time to the 
business of the District outside of the District's customary office hours, 
and to that end the Employee's schedule of work each day and week shall 
vary in accordance with the work required to be performed.  The 
Employee shall spend sufficient hours onsite to perform the District 
Administrator's duties; however, the Employee has discretion over the 
Employee's work schedule and work location. 

B. District Commitments. 

1.  Salary. 

1. The District agrees to pay Employee $12,500.00 monthly. Employee shall 
be paid in accordance with the District's customary payroll practices. 

2.   Thereafter, and subject to an annual evaluation of performance no later 
than thirty days after the anniversary date hereof, the District may increase 
Employee's compensation upon completion of the goals provided to the 
Employee by the Board upon hiring and at each successive annual 
evaluation. Any future decrease in the salary of the Employee will be 
made by the Board of Directors only in the event that a decrease is made 
in the salaries of all District employees.  In such event the percentage 
decrease in the salary of Employee shall be no more than the average 
percentage decrease of all other District employees. 

n. Benefits. 

In addition to the Employee's salary, the Employee shall receive the following 
benefits: 

1. Group Insurance.  District agrees to provide the same type and level of 
insurance benefits as provided to the Plant Superintendent, such as 
medical, dental, disability and life insurance. 

2. Retirement. District agrees to provide the same type and level of 
retirement benefits as provided to the Plant Superintendent.  Employee 
shall pay the full employee contribution rate, which is currently 8%. 

3. Automobile.   Unless District provides a District vehicle for Employee's 
business use, District agrees to pay Employee an automobile allowance in 
the amount of $350 per month for the use of his personal vehicle while on 
District business.  The Employee agrees to pay all costs of ownership, 
insurance, maintenance and all other costs related to this vehicle.  The 
Employee shall not be entitled to mileage reimbursement for travel within 
District boundaries.  Employee shall maintain at his own expense an 
automobile general liability and property damage insurance policy with 



limits of at least $300,000 for personal injury and $100,000 for property 
damage and an umbrella policy of no less than $1,000,000 at all times. 

4. Business Expenses. District agrees to reimburse the Employee for District- 
related business expenses and travel expenses, subject to State law and 
such rules, regulations and policies as the District has or may establish and 
amend from time to time. 

5. Association Dues.  District agrees to pay on behalf of the Employee any 
annual professional association dues as required for membership in 
professional organizations common to the field of wastewater special 
district management and public administration, and/or if the Employee's 
membership in the Association is reasonably considered to be beneficial to 
the District. 

6. The District agrees to pay the travel and subsistence expenses of the 
Employee to pursue official functions for the District, and meetings and 
occasions to continue the professional development of the Employee, 
including, but not limited to, national, state, regional and local training 
conferences; short courses, institutes and seminars; and, governmental 
groups and committees upon which the Employee serves as a member 
subject to annual review and approval by the District Board of Directors. 

7. Holidays, Vacation and Sick Leave.  District agrees that policies, rules and 
regulations of District for the Plant Superintendent relating to holidays, 
vacation and sick leave and other leaves of absence as they now exist, or 
as may be amended, shall apply to the Employee with the following 
exception. 

a. At the start of the term of this Agreement, District agrees to 
provide a vacation bank of 40 hours and the Employee's vacation 
leave accrual will begin at 15 days annually. 

8. Management Leave.  The District recognizes that extraordinary efforts 
may be required of the Employee to fulfill the responsibilities of the 
District Administrator position, and that the District Administrator 
position is designated as being exempt from the overtime provisions of the 
Fair Labor Standards Act.  The District agrees to provide five (5) days of 
Administrative Leave at the start of the term of this Agreement and then 
on January 1 for each remaining year of the Agreement. An additional five 
(5) days may, upon written request of Employee, be granted annually at 
the discretion of the Board of Directors. 

C. District Board of Directors Commitments. 

L   The District Board of Directors sets policy for the governance and administration 
of the District, and it implements its policies through the District Administrator. 

IL    The District Board of Directors recognizes that to meet the challenges facing the 
District they must exercise decisive policy leadership.  As one step in carrying out 
this leadership responsibility, the District Board of Directors commits to spending 
time each year outside of regular Board Meetings to work with the District 



Administrator and staff on creating and revisiting the District's Strategic Plan, for 
setting goals and priorities for the District, and to work on issues that may be 
inhibiting the maximal achievement of District goals. 

D. Mutual Commitments. 

L Strategic Workshops. 

1. As soon as practicable after the Employee's start date, the District Board 
of Directors and the Employee will meet to review the District's existing 
Strategic Plan and/or set out goals and priorities for the Employee to 
implement prior to the Employee's annual performance evaluation or such 
other dates as determined in the course of the meeting. 

2. Thereafter the review and update of the District Board of Directors' 
Strategic Plan will occur following each election of the Board between 
January 1st and March 31st. For purposes of clarity, the District Board of 
Directors and the Employee shall further establish a relative priority 
among those strategic goals and objectives within the Strategic Plan. 

11.  Annual Performance Evaluation. 

1. The District Board of Directors shall conduct an evaluation of the 
Employee's performance at least once each year.  The District and 
Employee agree that performance evaluations, for the purpose of mid- 
course corrections, may occur at any time.  The parties agree that the 
initial evaluation shall occur within 180 days of the Employee's start date 
and then no later than 30 days following the first anniversary of the start of 
the term of this Agreement and each year thereafter. 

2. The annual review and evaluation shall be in accordance with specific 
criteria developed jointly by the District Board of Directors and the 
Employee during the initial strategic planning and goal setting workshop 
described in Section 2.D.i. l above. 

3. In addition to the annual strategic plan workshops the District Board of 
Directors and the Employee may further define such goals and 
performance objectives during the annual evaluation as they mutually 
determine are necessary for the proper operation of the District for the 
attainment of the District Board of Directors' policy objectives.  The 
District and the Employee shall further establish a relative priority among 
those goals and performance objectives.  The parties may use an outside 
facilitator paid for by the District to assist with conducting the Employee's 
annual performance evaluation. 

 
 
3. TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE. 

The following provisions shall apply to the District's termination of Employee: 

A. The District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time with or without 
cause.  Termination shall require a vote of the District Board of Directors as set forth in 



C.  During the period from the stated intent to resign and actually leaving, the Employee 
shall continue to faithfully and competently perform the duties of District Administrator 
as set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual written 
agreement of the District Board of Directors and the Employee. 

B. Conflict of lnterest. 

1.    The District Administrator shall not engage in any business or transaction or shall 
have a financial or other personal interest or association, direct or indirect, which 
is in conflict with the proper discharge of official duties or would tend to impair 
independence of judgment or action in the performance of official duties. 
Personal as distinguished from financial interest includes interest arising from 
blood or marriage relationships or close business, personal, or political 
associations.  This section shall not serve to prohibit independent acts or other 
forms of enterprise during those hours not covered by active District employment, 
providing such acts do not constitute a conflict of interest as defined herein and 
are approved by the Board as set forth in Section 2(A)(i)(7) above. 

n.   The District Administrator shall also be subject to the conflict of interest 
provisions of the California Government Code and any conflict of interest code 
applicable to the Employee's District employment. 

C. Indemnification.   The District shall defend, save harmless and indemnify the Employee 
against any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether 
groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the 
performance of Employee's duties as District Administrator.   The District may 
compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or 
judgment rendered thereon. 

D. Severability.   If any clause, sentence, part, section or portion of this Agreement is found 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, such clause, sentence, 
part, section, or portion found shall be rendered as though it were not part of this 
Agreement and the remaining parts of this Agreement shall be fully binding and 
enforceable by the Parties hereto. 

 
 
6. NOTICES. 

Any written notices required by the Agreement shall be either given in person or by first 
class mail with the postage prepaid and address as follows: 

To District: Chair, Board of Directors 

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 

1600 Aloha Place 

Oceano, CA  93445 



To Employee: Gerhardt Hubner 
 
 
 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements and/or understandings, whether oral 
or in writing, concerning District Administrator's employment hereunder. 

 
 
In Witness Whereof, District and the Employee have executed this Agreement as of the date first written 
above. 

 
 

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District District Administrator 

John Shoals, Chair. (Date) 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

 

Clerk of the Board   (Date) 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

 

Attorney for District (Date) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
 
 
 

             
 
Date:   April 1, 2016 
 
To:      SSLOCSD Board of Directors 
 
From:  John Clemons, District Superintendent 
 
Subject: SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Operations 
 
Chart 1 – Plant Data 
March 
2016* 

INF 
Flow 
MGD 

Peak 
Flow
MGD 

INF 
BOD 
  mg/L 

EFF 
BOD 
mg/L 

INF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

EFF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

Fecal 
Coli 

Cl2 
lbs/day 

BOD 
REM 
Eff.% 

Average 2.14 3.37 366 20 416 30 5 206 95 
High 2.34 4.8 494 35 484 37 46 250  
Limit 5.0   40/60/90  40/60/90 2000  80 
 CY 2015 
Monthly 

         

Average 2.17 3.42 415 29 438 36 67 194 93 
High 2.42 4.8 495 43 494 47 255 402  

• * = Plant data through March 31st. 
 

 
Limit – 40/60/90 represent NPDES Permit limits for the monthly average, weekly 
average, and instantaneous value for plant effluent BOD and TSS. 
 
 
Maintenance 

• Replaced primary #1 moyno sludge pump with rebuilt pump. 
• Replaced 3 2” brass check valves at the reclaimed water station. 
• Installed new insulation on water pipes at chlorine tanks. 
• Cleared clogged pipe at #2 digester supernatant box. 



• Replaced PLC at Headworks #1 auger control. 
• Installed boiler water softener support at H&M building.  
• Work Orders. 
 

In-Progress 
• Garing, Taylor, and Associates is working with staff to review and ensure the 

integrity of the District’s A.G. Sewer Bridge.  
• Staff is working with MKN and Associates Engineers on the installation of a grit 

removal system. The bid process has been completed. 
• Staff is preparing an RFP for installation of a mechanical bar screen in the 

headworks.  
• Secondary Process Redundancy Project – A Project Kickoff meeting has been 

scheduled.  
• Satellite Water Resource Recovery Facilities Planning Feasibility Study. 

Project has been re-scoped.  
• Staff is conferring with PG&E representatives regarding possible energy 

conservation projects. 
• Staff is preparing a short-term emergency back-up plan in case of a FFR/sec. 

clarifier failure.  
• Staff is working to restore GIS manhole mapping system. A Project Kickoff 

meeting is scheduled. 
 
 
Miscellaneous 

• Staff attended an in-house safety meeting on sodium bisulfite safety. 
• Superintendent Clemons and Operator II Arias attended a two day training class 

on Programmable Logic Controllers. 
• Operator III F. Mui, OIT M. De Leon and OIT R. Thompson attended a CWEA 

Tri-Counties Training Seminar at the Carpentaria WWTP. 
• Superintendent Clemons attended a Central Coast Water Reuse Chapter Meeting. 

 
 

  
 

Best regards, 
 

John Clemons 
Superintendent 
 
 
 



 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 6, 2016  
 
Subject: PLACING TREATMENT FEES ON THE SLO COUNTY TAX ROLL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider postponing the District’s plan to place all 
wastewater treatment service fees on the San Luis Obispo County (SLO) Tax Roll. Staff recommends 
postponing the placement of wastewater treatment fees for the customers of the Cities of Arroyo Grande 
(AG) and Grover Beach (GB) on the SLO County tax roll for fiscal year 2016-17. 

BACKGROUND 

At the October 21, 2015 meeting of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) 
Board of Directors, the Board authorized staff to begin the process of placing the District’s wastewater 
treatment service fees on the San Luis Obispo County Tax Roll. Staff has had to delay the implementation 
of this process until the rate increase was approved. In the interim the District has received much input 
with regard to this item. 

DISCUSSION 

Placing wastewater treatment services billing on the county tax roll will benefit the District by 
significantly reducing the cost of billing customers and collecting payment from those customers. The 
expected annual cost would be about $10,000 annually. Currently the District budgets $66,000 annually 
for billing and collections. This will also eliminate the need for recurring negotiations and the potential 
for fee increases by billing agencies.  However, staff recognizes that this action will require property 
owners and tenants to make adjustments. Staff also recognizes that this action may cause a temporary 
inconvenience for affected parties.  

Below is a list of relevant facts for this item: 

• Given the fact that the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) was unwilling to agree to 
the fair and equitable fee agreement as voted on and approved by the SSLOCSD Board of 
Directors; and given the fact that the OCSD does not currently collect fees on behalf of the 
SSLOCSD; and given the fact that SSLOCSD has no other means to insure timely collection of 
wastewater treatment service fees from the Oceano Community Services District residents, 
SSLOCSD’s only option is to place the collection of wastewater treatment service fees for 
Oceano customers on the county tax roll. 



 
• The cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach did agree to the fair and equitable fee agreement 

as approved by the SSLOCSD Board of Directors. These cities have continued to provide billing 
services to the SSLOCSD. 
 

• Moving all three agencies to the tax roll at once will present a serious fiscal challenge to the 
District staff. That challenge being an interruption of cash flow since the County only pays the 
collected fees two or three times a year. 
 

• The movement to the tax roll will require some property owners to adjust their billing and 
payment methods. 
 

• The Sanitation District is facing the possibility of paying a 1.1 million dollar fine within the next 
several months. 
 

• The District may be paying 1.5 million dollars in project design cost within the next 18 months. 
 
Postponing placement of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach onto the tax roll will give staff the time to 
implement a phased (and more orderly) approach to placing service fees on the tax roll. If the Board 
approves, Staff would work with staff from the two cities to extend the current District approved 
agreement for one additional year. In the interim, Staff could observe SLO County payment methods and 
procedures. This would also give the property owners and renters in those cooperating communities time 
to make whatever adjustments necessary. 

FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The cost to place Oceano CSD customer fees on the tax roll would be approximately $3,000. 

The cost to place all three agencies on the tax roll would be approximately $15,000. 

Under the current agreement the cost to have the City of Arroyo Grande bill customers on behalf of the 
Sanitation District would be approximately $25,000. 

Under the current agreement the annual cost to have the City of Grover Beach bill customers on behalf of 
the Sanitation District would be approximately $22,000 

OPTIONS 

1. Continue with migration of fees to the tax rolls as previously approved. 
2. Modify the existing plan and postpone the placement of the city of Arroyo Grande and the city 

Grover Beach onto the tax roll. 
3. Modify the existing plan. 

 

 
Best Regards, 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 



   
 

 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Staff Report 

To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
 
Date:  April 06, 2016 
 
Subject: ELECTION OF SSLOCSD VICE CHAIR 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Annually the SSLOCSD Board elects its officers for a one-year term.  At the meeting of 
December 16, 2015, Director Guerrero was elected Vice Chair.  At the meeting of 
March 16, 2016, Director Lucey announced that she is the Director from the OCSD, and 
that Mr. Guerrero is the Alternate.  
 
DISCUSSION:  Chairman Shoals directed staff to re-agendize this item. 
 
 
 
 
John Clemons 
Interim District Administrator 
 
 
 



 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 6, 2016  
 
Subject: FEBRUARY 2016 LEGAL BILLS 
 

BACKGROUND 

During the Board meeting held on March 16, 2016, the Board of Directors removed the warrants 
for Co-Counsel from the warrant register for review. At that time the Board directed staff to 
bring this item back for discussion. 

 
Best Regards, 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	1   Agenda 04-06-2016
	4A.  Minutes of 03-16, 2016 Draft
	0130_001
	5. SuperMarch(2)2016
	6A.  Taxroll2Report
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6B.  Election of Officers
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6C.  February LegalBills
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	DA Contract Redacted.pdf
	EMPLOYMENT  AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

	ADP1821.tmp
	Sheet1




